GRANITE QUARRY
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY
PLANNING BOARD
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
November 3, 2025
6:00 p.m.
Call to Order
Determination of Quorum
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Approval of Agenda
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to (approve agenda as presented OR with amendments).
2. Approval of Minutes October 6, 2025

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to (approve minutes as presented OR with amendments).

New Business

3.

Draft Ordinance ZMA 2025-12-08 Osterhus IND to AG
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to recommend approval of Ordinance ZMA 2025-12-08 to the Mayor
and Town Council.

Draft Agreement Development Agreement — Kind TND
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to recommend approval of the draft Development Agreement to the
Mayor and Town Council.

5. Update SL 2025-94
Old Business None
Adjourn

Planning Board Page 1 November 3, 2025



»

GRANITE QUARRY

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, October 6, 2025

Present: Chair Joe Hudson, Vice-Chair Fred Krusemark, Jerry Holshouser, Greg Summitt, Jerry Gomez
Staff: Town Clerk Aubrey Smith

Call to Order: Chairman Hudson called the Planning Board meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Determination of Quorum: Chairman Hudson verified there was a quorum present.
Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hudson.

1. Approval of Agenda
ACTION: Mr. Summitt made a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Krusemark seconded the motion.
The motion passed with all in favor.

2. Approval of Minutes August 4, 2025
ACTION: Mr. Krusemark made a motion to approve (the August 4, 2025 meeting minutes). Mr.
Holshouser seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor.

New Business

3. Review Granite Quarry Development Ordinance
The Board reviewed the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance and discussed where to find different
resource materials.

4. Review Rules of Procedure
The Board reviewed the current Rules of Procedure. They will be reviewed in depth at the regular
meeting in January.

Old Business None

Adjournment
ACTION: Mr. Krusemark made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Summitt seconded the motion. Chairman Hudson
closed the meeting at 6:17 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,
Town Clerk

Planning Board Page 2 November 3, 2025



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
GRANITE QUARRY DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA
Ordinance #ZMA-2025-12-08

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Granite Quarry, North
Carolina that the Official Zoning Map (OZM) of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance
(GQDO) be amended in accordance with both GQDO Article 5 and Article 6 of G.S. Chapter
160D. The subject property of G Kenneth and Cynthia Osterhus described as Rowan ‘€ounty
Parcel located at 0 Dunns Mountain Rd (Parcel 609 135) as shown in the location map appearing
in Attachment “A” and by recorded plat appearing in Attachment “B” attachedshereto. Said
parcel consists of approximately 27.35 net acres, outside of the public right-of-way.

Part 1. Consistency with Adopted Comprehensive Plan.

The Town Council finds that a zoning map amendment applicable te the portion of the subject
property currently designated “Industrial (IND) Zoning District’” and establishing a new zoning
designation in accordance with procedures established by-G.S8.'160D-604(b) of “Agriculture
(AG) Zoning District” in alignment with the remaind€t ofithe property, is consistent with the
Town’s 2040 Comprehensive Land Use & Master Plan(the Plan) and the “Rural” designation

upon the subject property as appearing on the Plan’s “Future Land Use Map” therein as
amended, as required by G.S. 160D-605(a).

Part 2. Statement of Reasonableness,

This amendment is reasonable because the subject property no longer requires an industrial
classification. New residences, willsbe constructed supporting the Town’s goal of building a
diverse and resilient housingstock, as required by G.S. 160D-605(b).

Part 3. Establishment of New Zoning Designation.

That Rowan County Parcel ID 609 135 as shown in Attachments “A” and “B”, attached hereto
shall be desighated “Agriculture (AG) District” in its entirety on the Official Zoning Map.

Part 4. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall be effective at 12:01 AM on the 9th day of December 2025.

Adopted this 8th day of December 2025.

s/ s/
Brittany H. Barnhardt, Mayor Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk

Planning Board Page 3 November 3, 2025



Attachment “A”

Image from Rowan County GIS: 0 Dunns Mountain Road (Rowan County Parcel ID 609 135)

— 961 12.01 Ac.
—_— CALC AC:
509,007 17.43 Ac.

i ‘ 509 133
R
E  CALCAC: |

=== 1599

; Ac. |

T 609

I 018 \ [

r'-"‘ 509 017 | 609 127
[ CALCAC:
™ | 12.5Ac." |
| CALCAC: 61TA137

5 | A CALC AC: SRR CALC.
LOS 609 013 27.35Ac. x_‘\ﬂg /]
i . amYRDJ_-________'—_'_ — 609 135

Aooinite Quarry ET > < ./ CALC AC:

W = ——, m\:m rﬁ [—' L| 15.38 Ac.
G e A R AT

'l-l. _r‘. ———— J | I: | =
F:AV """-I e o Y e

|\ gsimcmt =2
S,L,—g W ﬁ&erE dmxﬁmH 608

18 £ cac || || al_

T

Tl FITR T Jommn

i e
o002 | 'Re

:5'2‘-1-.,1 ..

) ,-i.-'

rs

Q}'
<4

(This space left blank intentionally)

Planning Board Page 4 November 3, 2025



Road (Rowan County Parcel ID 609 135)

Attachment “B”
ing 0 Dunns Mountain

Survey plat show

(e e

N

NO SCALE
N

//\n.d
S heg s

O
|

S e g
T~

ST o T R
Gavry o hown

1, Bints Mura.

V7w OLCER o7 dovan cory
TR RAT e s o AAT
o Vs TS CEATEEICTION 13

ulefefe|s|efafals|s

HHH

|n-«:ixu=nuuuuru

T
CEEHEE

HHHHEHHEHEHEE R

November 3, 2025

Page 5

Planning Board



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )

)
COUNTY OF ROWAN )

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this _

day of , 202 (“Effective Date”), by and between S&M FINANCE GROUP,
LLC, a North Carolina Chartered Limited Liability Company (together with its affiliates,
successors and assigns, “Developer”)jand the TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, a North
Carolina municipal corporation (“Town™):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Section 160D-1001(a)(1) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides
that “Development projects, often occur in multiple phases extending over several years,
requiring a long-tetm €emmitment of both public and private resources; and

WHEREAS,Section 160D-1001(a)(3) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides
that “Because of their scale and duration, such projects often require careful coordination of
public capital facilities planning, financing, and construction schedules and the phasing of the
private development;” and

WHEREAS, Section 160D-1001(a)(4) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides
that “Such projects involve substantial commitments of private capital, which developers are
usually unwilling to risk without sufficient assurances that development standards will remain
stable through the extended period of the development;” and

WHEREAS, Section 160D-1001(a)(5) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides
that “Such developments often permit communities and developers to experiment with different

Planning Board Page 6 November 3, 2025



or nontraditional types of development concepts and standards, while still managing impacts on
the surrounding areas;” and

WHEREAS, Section 160D-1001(a)(6) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides
that “To better structure and manage development approvals for such developments and ensure
their proper integration into local capital facilities programs, local governments need the
flexibility to negotiate such developments;” and

WHEREAS, in view of the foregoing, Section 160D-1001(b) and 160D-1003g0f, the
North Carolina General Statutes expressly authorize local governments and agenciesito enter into
development agreements with developers pursuant to the procedures and requiremerts of
Sections 160D-1001 through 160D-1012 of the North Carolina General Statutes; which
procedures and requirements include approval of the development agreementby the governing
body of the local government by ordinance after a duly noticed public hearing; and

WHEREAS, Section 160D-1004 of the North Carolina General Statutes permits the use
of a development agreement to “property of any size”. G.S. 160D-1004 further provides that
“Development agreements shall be of a reasonable term specified imythe agreement”; and

WHEREAS, Developer’s affiliates are the owners™or contract purchasers of those certain
parcel(s) of land in or around the Town of Granite-Quarry, North Carolina described on Exhibit
A attached hereto and incorporated herein by refetence (eollectively, the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, Developer, together with its affiliates, desires to develop some or all of the
Property consistent with the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance(s) (the “Development”) in
accordance with the terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Propérty is partially within the Granite Quarry Town limits, and the
Town has determined that the Development is consistent with the Town’s adopted
Comprehensive Land Use and Master Plan and Official Zoning Map; that the Development
conforms to all relevantsequirements of the regulations of the Town of Granite Quarry, North
Carolina, including the Guanite Quarry Development Ordinance (the “Zoning”); that the
Development, includimgits. density, access and circulation, is compatible with the existing and/or
permissible future us€s of adjacent property; and that the Development will not have detrimental
impacts on the safetyyor viability of permitted uses on adjacent properties; and

WHEREAS, the Town has identified the need for certain municipal street, drainage,
water and sewer lines in and around the Property (as reflected in the Construction Plans (herein
defined), the “Infrastructure Improvements”);

WHEREAS, Developer is willing to manage the design and construction of the
Infrastructure Improvements to serve the Development; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the Developer have made the determination that the statutory

requirements have been met and that it is in the parties’ mutual best interest to have the
Infrastructure Improvements designed and constructed in coordination with the Development so

Planning Board Page 7 November 3, 2025



that the future needs of the Town’s residents are met with as little disruption and inconvenience as
possible; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to memorialize the terms of their agreement with regard
to the design and construction of the Infrastructure Improvements so the work on the
Development and the Infrastructure Improvements may proceed as planned; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the Development will benefit the citizens and
businesses of the Town of Granite Quarry by expanding the Town’s tax base, by diversifying the
Town’s economy, by contributing to attracting new businesses and industries to theyTown, and
by creating additional housing opportunities within the Town.

THE TOWN COUNCIL FINDS AND DECLARES, that it is_in the best interests of
the citizens and businesses of Granite Quarry for the Town to encourage and support the
Development.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon recitals hereinabovey'the terms and conditions set
forth herein and in consideration of the mutual promises andsassurances provided herein, the
parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Approval of Site Development and ConstructioniPlans. Developer and/or its affiliates
may submit construction plans for the Development ™t the Town’s Planning Department in
accordance with the procedures in the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance including those
approved prior to, simultaneously with, Or after the Effective Date and any amendments or
revisions thereof approved in accordance with applicable law, the “Plans”. If and when the
Construction Plans are approved by ‘the Town per the procedures in the Granite Quarry
Development Ordinance, the Property may,be developed in accordance with the Construction
Plans and the terms of this Agr€ement, including the following:

a) Preparation of Censtruction Plans including site preparation/grading (subject to obtaining
a grading permitand/or an erosion control permit as required in the Granite Quarry
Development Ordinance) including any Performance Guarantee(s) required therein;

b) Preparation\of Infrastructure Improvement plans including applicable permitting and
approyals byyapplicable agencies, and

c) The installation and approval of all required improvements.

2. Zoning >1 isted Uses, Maximum Density and Conditions. The Property may be used for
anyquses currently listed under the Zoning, together with any incidental or accessory uses
associated’ therewith to the density and dimensional criteria shown on the Site Plan as
revised/received 03-06-2025 and dated 12-12-2024 (the “Site Plan”) attached hereto as “Exhibit
B” and incorporated herein. Conditions applicable to the property designated by this Ordinance
include:

a) Only the uses listed in Table 8.1 of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance (GQDO)
for the Single-Family Residential (SFR) Districts are eligible in the “Traditional
Neighborhood Development Overlay District Conditional Zoning” (TNDO-CZ) created

Planning Board Page 8 November 3, 2025



by Ordinance #ZMA 2025-02-10-3 adopted March 10, 2025 by the Granite Quarry Town
Council.

b) The general schematic development plan as shown on the Site Plan adopted by Ordinance
#ZMA 2025-02-10-3 appearing in “Exhibit B” establishes general layout of lots and
parcels, maximum density, location of open space, placement of privately maintained
public access and utility easements, placement of future public streets, and connectivity
patterns with existing streets in the vicinity.

c) Development criteria is established Ordinance #ZMA 2025-02-10-3 as shown o' the Site
Plan appearing in “Exhibit B”.

3. Expansion of Site. Nothing in this Agreement should prevent the Developer and/or its
affiliates from pursuing contiguous expansion of the Development upon compliance with the
Town of Granite Quarry Development Ordinance and the terms of (this|Agreéement. Upon
acquisition, such property shall be included within the Property and petitioned for annexation
into the corporate limits of the Town.

4. Development of Site. The Property may be subdivided iato smaller parcels in accordance
with the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance. However, subdivision of the Property is
required and the site may not be developed as a single parCel.

5. Transportation Improvements. Developeriand/ofyits affiliates shall install or cause the
installation of transportation improvements required for the issuance of the driveway permits for
the Development as specified by North Catolina Department of Transportation (the “NCDOT”).

6. Access/Infrastructure Road Improvements. Developer represents that the Property will
have sufficient access in accordance withythe Site Plan attached hereto as “Exhibit B” and
incorporated herein to adequately provide two-way access into and out of the Development.
Developer agrees to coordifiate With Town prior to commencing construction of infrastructure
and attend a pre-construction meeting with the Town, NCDOT, Salisbury-Rowan Utilities (the
“SRU”), utility providersyand all affected/interested utilities.

7. Law in Effect atlime of the Agreement Governs the Development of the Development.
The Property may be‘developed, and the Development may be completed in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and the terms of the Zoning and the terms and conditions of Ordinance
#ZMA 2025:02-10-3 and other Town development regulations as they exist on this Agreement’s
Effective Datepexcept that the Property and the Development will be subject to current Town
regulations beyond those contained in the Zoning and Ordinance #ZMA 2025-02-10-3. Pursuant
to G.Sy, 160D-1007, and except as provided in G.S. 160D-108.1, Town may not apply
subsequently adopted land development regulations to the Property or the Development during
the term of this Agreement without the written consent of Developer. Additionally, during this
Agreement’s term, no development impact fees subsequently adopted by the Town shall apply
to the Property or to the Development without the written consent of Developer, including any
subsequently adopted fees related to public facilities as may be levied by the Town. This
Agreement does not abrogate any rights preserved by G.S. 160D-108 or 160D-108.1 or that may
vest pursuant to common law or otherwise in the absence of this Agreement. Developer

Planning Board Page 9 November 3, 2025



acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement does not concern or limit any County, State, or
federal regulations that may apply to the Property or to the Development.

8. Development Schedule. Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
commence the Development and portions thereof within five (5) years after the Effective Date
in accordance with the Schedule appearing in “Exhibit C” herein (the “Development
Schedule”). In the event development is economically unfeasible according to the Development
Schedule, Developer and its affiliates may be granted reasonable extensions consistentvith the
economic feasibility of the development of the Property.

9. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on Effective Date and'expite tert' (10)
years after unless sooner terminated by the mutual consent of the parties heretogor their
successors in interest, or unless extended by the mutual consent of the_parties hereto or their
successors in interest.

10.  Local Development Permits. In accordance with G.S. 160D-1006(a)(6), the following is
a description or list of the local development permits approved onsieeded to be approved for the
development of the Development:

a) Town of Granite Quarry and/or NCDOT Entrance/Driveway Permits

b) Town Zoning Permits (for site work and individually for each dwelling and/or accessory
structure)

c) Utility Extension Permits (water and sewer) by SRU
d) State Sedimentation and Erosion Centrol Permit(s) by Rowan County
e) Rowan County Building Permits (for each building, dwelling and/or accessory structure)

The failure of this Agfeement to address a particular permit, condition, term or restriction does
not relieve Develgper of the,necessity of complying with all Federal, State of North Carolina,
Rowan County and Tewn of Granite Quarry laws governing those jurisdictions’ respective
permitting requiremehts, ‘conditions, terms or restrictions.

11. Water’and"Sewer Lines. Developer and/or its affiliates, at its sole cost and expense and
in asSociation with the terms hereof, shall engineer, design, permit, construct (or cause the
construction of) and install (or cause the installation of) the Infrastructure Improvements. All
Infrasttucttire Improvements shall be maintained, engineered, designed, constructed, and
installed in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and policies
and in a good and workmanlike manner. Upon construction thereof in accordance with applicable
law, Developer agrees to dedicate these portions of the Infrastructure Improvements to SRU for
acceptance of all such Infrastructure Improvements. All engineering, testing, certifications, and
contracted responsibilities required under applicable law as of the Effective Date shall be the
burden of Developer to ensure compliance for operation.

Planning Board Page 10 November 3, 2025



12.  Water and Sewer Fees. To the extent that the SRU provides water and sewer service, the
Developer and all property owners in the Development shall pay the fees to SRU for water and
sewer service as provided in the then-current SRU Schedule of Rates, Fees and Charges for Water
and Sewer Service, which schedule is subject to change by the adoption of annual budgets and
fee schedules contained therein.

13. Water and Sewer Capacity Reservation. The parties acknowledge that SRU does
currently provide sufficient water and sewer service for the Property and the Development,and
that such water and sewer service and capacity are presently reserved for the Property and the
Development.

14. Connection to SRU’s Water and Sewer System Following Annexation. In the event that
any portion(s) of the Property or addition thereto lying outside the corporate limits’of the Town
shall, upon the request of Developer, be eligible for and permitted physical eonnection of the
Development to SRU’s water and sewer system subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, standards for connection to SRU systems, and applicable federal, state and local laws
upon annexation into the corporate limits of the Town.

15.  Development Streets, Driveways and Parking/“Unless” otherwise provided in this
Agreement, the streets, driveways and parking areas‘constructed Wwithin the Development shall
conform to the Granite Quarry Development Oudifiafice and the Town of Granite Quarry
Technical Standards & Specifications Manual.

16.  Utilities. The Developer may request the extension of power and other electric; telephone,
data and cable utilities and Developer’'ageees thatall such utilities shall be buried on site adjacent
to the public street right-of-way, or withinya dedicated privately maintained public access and
utility easement where applicable.

17. Assignment. TheAights andebligations conferred by this Agreement may be assigned by
Developer to any purchaser’or other developer of any portion of the Property. The Town and
SRU shall be notified in writing of the assignment of such rights.

18. Amendmenti/The’terms of this Agreement may be amended in writing by the mutual
consent ofthe partiesshereto or their successors in interest.

19.  Reeordation. Within fourteen (14) days after Town enters into this Agreement, Developer
shallrecord this Agreement or a memorandum thereof in the Rowan County Public Registry.

20. Periodic Review. Pursuant to G.S. 160D-1008, the Planning, Zoning and Development
Administrator or other Town designee shall conduct a periodic review, (the “Periodic Review”)
at least every 12 months, at which time Developer shall be required to demonstrate good faith
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. If, as a result of the Periodic Review, Town finds
and determines that Developer has committed a material breach of the terms or conditions of the
Agreement, Town shall serve notice in writing, within a reasonable time after the Periodic
Review (which shall not be less than 60 days), upon Developer setting forth with reasonable
particularity the nature of the breach and the evidence supporting the finding and determination,

6

Planning Board Page 11 November 3, 2025



and providing Developer a reasonable time in which to cure the material breach subject to
reasonable extensions as the circumstances may apply or dictate. If Developer fails to cure the
material breach within the time given, then Town unilaterally may terminate or modify the
Agreement; provided, the notice of termination or modification may be appealed to the Board of
Adjustment in the manner provided by G.S. 160D-405.

21. Default. The failure of Developer or Town to comply with the terms of this Agreement
shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting party to pursue such remedies asallowed
under applicable law; provided, however, that no termination of this Agreement may be\deelared
by Town absent providing to Developer the notice and opportunity to cure set outamG.S. 160D-
1008 plus an additional 60-day cure period if permitted by applicable law. The parties, t6 this
Agreement recognize that, in addition to other remedies that may be availablejyTown‘has the
right to enforce its rules, policies, regulations, ordinances, and the terms_of this Agreement by
seeking an injunction to compel compliance with the terms thereof. Subject to the’terms of this
Agreement, in the event that an owner, tenant, Developer or any authorized uset on the Property
violates the rules, policies, regulations or ordinances of Town or violates the terms of this
Agreement, Town may, without seeking an injunction and after teh (10) days’ notice to correct
the violation, take such actions as shall be deemed appropriate;under) law until such violations
have been corrected by such violating party or DeveloperAln addition to any other rights or
remedies, either party may institute legal action to cure, cofrect, or'remedy any default or breach,
to specifically enforce any covenants or agreements set forth4n thé Agreement or to enjoin any
threatened or attempted violation of the Agreementy®orto obtain any other remedies permitted
by law. Any legal proceedings shall be instituted only.in the Superior Court of the County of
Rowan, State of North Carolina, or in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of North
Carolina.

22.  Notices. Any notice, demand, request; consent, approval or communication which a party
is required to or may give to another party hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered or
addressed to the other at theladdtess below set forth or to such other address as such party may
from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein prescribed, and such notice
or communication shall be.deemed to have been given or made when communicated by personal
delivery or by independentieourier service or by electronic mail or if by mail on the fifth (5th)
business day after the'deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or
certified, addressed @s hereinafter provided. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals
or commudications torthe parties shall be addressed to:

Town at: Attn: Planning., Zoning and Subdivision Administrator
Town of Granite Quarry
Physical: 143 N. Salisbury Avenue,
Salisbury NC 28146
Mailing: PO Box 351 Granite
Quarry, NC 28072
Telephone:|704-279-5596

Planning Board Page 12 November 3, 2025



Developer at: c/o Avontium, LLC
112 Tryon Street
Suite 809
Charlotte, NC 28284
Attention: Stas M. Kostadinov, Manager
Telephone: 980-210-7715
Email: stas.kostadinovv(@gmail.com

23. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth, and incorporates by reference, allsof the
agreements, conditions and understandings between Town and Developer relative toithe Property
and the Development, and there are no promises, agreements, conditions or understandings; oral
or written, expressed or implied, among these parties relative to the matters addressed herein
other than as set forth in this Agreement or as clearly and explicitly incorporated by reference.

24, Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have réviewed and revised
this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any
amendments or exhibits hereto.

25.  Assignment. After notice to Town, Developer may assign its rights and responsibilities
hereunder (in whole or in part) to subsequent landowner§ ofsall of any portion of the Property,
provided that no assignment as to a portion “efstheé) Property will relieve Developer of
responsibility under this Agreement with respect to the remaining portion of the Property without
the written consent of Town.

26. Governing Law. This Agreement shall*be governed by the laws of the State of North
Carolina.

27. Counterparts. This Agreément may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original and such’counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.

28. Agreement to Cooperate. In the event of any legal action instituted by a third party
challenging the validitynef any provision of this Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate
in defending such aetion; provided, however, each party shall retain the right to pursue its own
independent legal defense.

29. 7 Agreements to Run with the Land. This Agreement shall be recorded in the Rowan
County Registry. The Agreements, covenants and restrictions contained herein shall be deemed
to be alien upon, binding upon and run with the land and shall be binding upon and an obligation
of all successors in the ownership of the Property. The agreements, covenants and restrictions
contained herein on behalf of the Town shall be deemed to be a benefit to Developer and
Developer’s successors-in-interest that run with the land and shall be binding upon and an
obligation of Town and any successors-in-interest of the Town.

30.  Hold Harmless. Developer agrees to and shall hold Town, its officers, agents, employees,
consultants, attorneys, special counsel and representatives, harmless from liability for damages,

Planning Board Page 13 November 3, 2025



just compensation, restitution, costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees arising out of claims for
personal injury, including death, and claims for property damage which may arise from the direct
or indirect operations of the Developer or their contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees or
other persons acting on their behalf or with their permission which relates to the Property or the
Development pursuant to this Agreement. Developer agrees to pay all costs for the defense of
the Town and its officers, agents, employees, consultants, attorneys, special counsel and
representatives regarding any legal proceeding caused or arising in any way from Developer’s
actions in connection with this Agreement. Town agrees to and shall hold Developer, its officers,
agents, employees, consultants, attorneys, special counsel and representatives, harmlesssfrom
liability for damages, just compensation, restitution, costs, expenses, and attorneys’fees arising
out of claims for personal injury, including death, and claims for property damage which"may
arise from the direct or indirect operations of the Town or their contractgrs, Subconfractors,
agents, employees or other persons acting on their behalf or with their permission Which relates
to the Property or the Development pursuant to this Agreement. Town agrees to pay all costs for
the defense of the Developer and its officers, agents, employees, consultants, attorneys, special
counsel and representatives regarding any legal proceeding caused or arising in any way from
Town’s actions in connection with this Agreement.

31. Severability. If any section or provision of this Agreement is ruled by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise’unenforceable for any reason, that
section or provision shall be deemed severed fropr"this Agreement, and the remaining sections
and provisions of this Agreement shall remain fullyseffective and enforceable.

Planning Board Page 14 November 3, 2025



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their bands and seals, (active the date first above
written.

Developer:

S&M Finance Group, LL.C a Limited Liability Company

By: Stas M. Kostadinov, President & CEO
STATE OF North Carolina
COUNTY OF Union
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the  day of , 202 , by Stas

M. Kostadinov, the President & CEO of S&M Finance Group, LLC a Limited Liability
Company, on behalf of said entity.

NotagysPublic in and for the State of

10

Planning Board Page 15 November 3, 2025



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their bands and seals, (active the date first above
written.

Town:

By:

Brittany H. Barnhardt, Mayor
Attest:

By:

Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk
SEAL
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
IN THE COUNTY OF

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that hesigned the foregoing instrument in
his name on his behalf as its act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal this the day of ,202 .

NOTARY PUBLIC
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

[SEAL]

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
IN THE COUNTY OF

I, a Notary Public ofithe County and State aforesaid, certify that
personally/came before me this day and acknowledged that he signed the foregoing instrument in
his name on'his behalf as its act and deed.

Witaess my hand and official seal this the day of ,202 .

NOTARY PUBLIC
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

[SEAL]

11

Planning Board Page 16 November 3, 2025



EXHIBIT A — DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

BEGINNING at a #4 rebar set in the corner of Troutman Street and the property of Albert J.
Ruff Jr and Barbara S. Ruff, now or formerly, and running then with the line of Ruff, North
88°15°57” West 510.94 Feet to a #5 rebar set, thence North 01°19°28” East 211.60 Feet to a
point, thence North 88°40°32” West 2.99 Feet to a point, thence North 01°34’47” East677.12
Feetto a 1”iron pipe found 1.30" W of property line, thence South 83°40’14” East 3.17 Feet
to a point, thence North 01°51°26” East 305.54 Feet to a #5 smooth rod found, thence South
88°04°50” East 225.38 Feet to a #4 rebar set, thence South 14°11°35” East 212.90 Feet to a
#5 rebar set, thence South 12°57°00” East 390.57 Feet to a #4 rebar set, thence South
78°08°46” West 26.22 Feet to a #4 rebar set, thence South 12°44’39” East 624.45 Feetto the
point and place of BEGINNING, containing 10.226 acres +/-as shown on survey of #507
Troutman Street for S&M Finance by Christopehr D. Faulk, NCPLS L-5013 dated September
11, 2023.

12

Planning Board Page 17 November 3, 2025



r
=
&

A

% e D o D T s g Pl ok

P —r—— 2

o i i o e ui

A W N T N 0 By 1 i bl |

s tea o ana e  n  m ay e T ] = |

i [ C ') s La s i i
iy ey bl
g e i . Fotnd v,  paacarnd,

I
4
I
METR AL
LAY SURETG,
SR s G WL

- i
i e 9 ey e i i v s g

il S i e e e e e o wu
e mm b [ i
et v Pttt —_— i

o iy o s LT i
=T e o o e ey i Tk e S i
S s = i
o L i ik s ey ok At | AT b i, \ A

i
H—

|
|
)

oy =1
et 4 o oy . s e S ——] — am
frommrnte pr e e th e
S e v e W i ] o ] .
i T T — B i Pevsesa am i i iy
e g e ot o £ g

KNI ESTATES & GRATNITE CUARRY
S &M Fia o Graap, LLD
& T ROWAN CELANT, Ra0RTH CAROLNA

TN OV SRR NTT

November 3, 2025

13

EXHIBIT B - SITE PLAN

EARCEL IV EAR-1 000 D0000N0Y & 2 & 300 BO000VI0T, O 1 NSNS 800

Page 18

Planning Board



EXHIBIT C - SCHEDULE

Phase 1 Permitting: To be consistent with the Plan and completed within five (5) years of the
Effective Date.

Phase 2 Implementation including:
1. All site infrastructure consisting of streets and utilities, sediment centrol

facilities, alleys, and signage completed within seven (7) years of the Effective
Date.

2. Fifty (50) percent of lots built upon with habitable dwellings including
sidewalks and street trees for each habitable dwelling completed within ten
(10) years of the Effective Date.

14

Planning Board Page 19 November 3, 2025



	November 3, 2025 Planning Board Meeting Agenda
	1. Approval of Agenda
	2. Approval of Minutes
	3. ZMA 2025-12-08 Osterhus
	4. Development Agreement - Kind TND
	5. SL 2025-94



